
Visit the Township's Web Site www.twp.ferguson.pa.us  and sign up for Notify Me! to receive email notices about Township 
Information. 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, October 24, 2022, 6:00 PM 

Hybrid Meeting 

REMOTE PARTICIPANTS: 
Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83268113138 
Meeting ID:  832 6811 3138 
Zoom Access Instructions 

IN-PERSON PARTICIPANTS: 
Ferguson Township Municipal 
Building 
Main Meeting Room 
3147 Research Drive 
State College, PA 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. CITIZENS INPUT

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. September 26, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes

IV. NEW BUSINESS

1. Salvation Baptist Church Preliminary Land Development Plan
Kristina Bassett, Community Planner

On June 1, 2022, Lichty Engineering submitted, a Preliminary Land Development
Plan on behalf of their client, The Salvation Baptist Church.  Salvation Baptist
Church, formerly known as The Russian Church of Christ, is located at 3645 West
College Avenue (TP: 24-004-,078-,0000-). This parcel is approximately 60.61 acres
and is zoned Rural Agricultural (RA) and Corridor Overlay (COD).

This land development plan proposes a fellowship hall and garage, totaling 13,626
SF. At the time of the original land development plan, a fellowship hall and garage
was proposed adjacent to the church and was never constructed. Since it has been
more than five (5) years since the last approved land development plan, a new plan
is required.

Staff has reviewed the 4th resubmission of the preliminary land development plan
and is recommending conditional approval subject to the conditions described in the
Community Planner memorandum, dated October 20, 2022.

Recommended Motion: Move that the Planning Commission recommend
conditional approval of the Salvation Baptist Preliminary Land Development Plan to
the Board of Supervisors subject to the conditions described in the Community
Planner memorandum dated October 20, 2022.

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

1

http://www.twp.ferguson.pa.us/
http://www.constantcontact.com/index.jsp
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83268113138
https://www.twp.ferguson.pa.us/administration/pages/zoom-instructions


 
Staff Recommendation: That the Planning Commission recommend conditional 
approval to the Board of Supervisors. 
 

2.  College Township Pedestrian Facilities Master Plan Review 
Kristina Bassett, Community Planner 
 
College Township has submitted Walkable College Township, a Pedestrian 
Facilities Master Plan for Ferguson Township’s review and comment.  
 
Included in the agenda is a memorandum from Lindsay Schoch, AICP, College 
Township Principal Planner, that includes a link below to review the master plan and 
survey to submit comments: 
https://pedestrian-facilities-master-plan-college-township.hub.arcgis.com/  
 
Recommended Motion: No action is required. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Review the Pedestrian Facilities Master Plan and provide 
comments to staff. 
 

V. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COMMISSION 
 

1. Update on Cecil Irvin Park Grant 
Staff received a request to provide a brief update on the Cecil Irvin Park State Grant 
that the Township recently applied for. On September 6, 2022, the Pennsylvania 
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (DCNR) opened an application 
period for a supplemental fall funding round. As a result of this opportunity, Staff 
proposed to apply for this grant for the construction of Cecil Irvin Park—Phase II, a 
vital, urgent need providing connectivity throughout the Pine Grove Mills Village 
area. Additionally, this park features climate action affirmative Green Infrastructure 
via native seed mixes and pervious paving, additional walking paths and alternative 
amenities suggested as a result of a 2021 review process by the Pine Grove Mills 
Small Area Plan Committee. Amenities include dual walking loops, ADA accessible 
pathways, bunches, parking, and a pavilion providing access to recreation of all. 

 
VI. OFFICIAL REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

 
1. Board of Supervisors Report 
2. CRPC Report 

  

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

2

https://pedestrian-facilities-master-plan-college-township.hub.arcgis.com/


 
3. Land Development Plans 

 

PLAN NAME SUBMISSION DATE REVIEW PERIOD PLAN EXPIRATION 

All Washed Up Auto Spa 
Preliminary Land 
Development Plan 

September 12, 2022 Comments returned 
September 28, 2022 

December 11, 2022 

Farmstead View Preliminary 
Subdivision Plan 

July, 30, 2021 Conditions of approval 
returned June 27, 2022 

August 24, 2022 
(Conditional Approval by 
BOS on June 21, 2022) 

Peace Center and Cemetery 
Preliminary Land 
Development Plan 

May 18, ,2021 Second Review comments 
returned October 12, 2022 

January 31, 2023 

Fusion Japanese Steakhouse WITHDRAWN 
IMBT Preliminary Subdivision 
Plan 

January 31, 2022 Conditions of approval 
returned September 7, 2022 

November 2, 2022 
(Conditional Approval by 
BOS on September 6, 
2022) 

1004 West College Ave 
Vertical Mixed-Use Building 

March 14, 2022 Second Review comments 
returned October 5, 2022 

December 12, 2022 

MP Machinery Preliminary 
Land Development Plan 

April 6, 2022 Under Staff’s Third Review. 
Comments due October 27, 
2022 

November 30, 2022 
 

Minor Subdivision /Replot of 
TP 4-433-007-0000 and 24-
433-008-0000 at 2151 and 
2161 Sandy Drive 

August 30, 2022 Conditions of approval 
returned October 5, 2022 

November 29, 2022 
(Conditional Approval by 
BOS on October 3, 2022) 

Salvation Baptist Church 
Preliminary Land 
Development Plan 

June 1, 2022 PC Review 10/24/2022 
(BOS 11/1/2022) 

November 7, 2022 

125 East Pine Grove Road 
Preliminary Land 
Development Plan 

October 12, 2022 Under Staff’s First Review. 
Comments due October 26, 
2022 

January 10, 2023 

 
4. Staff Updates 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

3



 
FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 

6:00 PM 
 
ATTENDANCE 
The Planning Commission held its second meeting of the month on Monday, September 26, 2022, 
as a hybrid meeting.  In attendance: 
 
Commission: Staff: 
Jerry Binney – Chair 
Rob Crassweller - Secretary 
Shannon Holliday 
Bill Keough 
Lisa Rittenhouse 
Dr. Ellen Taricani – Vice Chair 
Ralph Wheland 
Qian Zhang - Alternate 
 

Jeff Ressler - Zoning Administrator 
Kristina Bassett – Community Planner 
 

Others in attendance:  Rhonda R. Demchak, Recording Secretary 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mr. Binney called the Ferguson Township Planning Commission’s regular meeting to 
order on Monday, September 26, at 6:00 p.m. and it has been advertised in accordance 
with the PA Sunshine Act as a hybrid meeting.    
 
Ms. Bassett took roll call, and the Planning Commission had a quorum. 
 

II. CITIZEN INPUT 
 
There were no comments. 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Mr. Wheland moved that the Planning Commission approve the September 12, 2022, 
Regular Meeting Minutes.  Dr. Taricani seconded the motion.   
 
Mr. Keough asked if the Township should start indicating on the minutes who was present 
in the room and who attended virtually to ensure the minutes are being accurately 
recorded.  Dr. Taricani suggested adding a letter beside the name of the Planning 
Commission members.   
  
The motion passed unanimously.   

 
IV. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Subdivision/Replot of TP 24-433-007-0000 and 24-433-008-0000 at 2151 and 

2161 Sandy Drive 
 
Ms. Bassett reported Penn Terra Engineering, Inc. submitted on behalf of their 
client, the ‘Subdivision/Replot of TP 24-433-007-0000 and 24-433-008-0000 at 
2151 and 2161 Sandy Drive’ Minor Subdivision Plan. This plan proposes the 
adjustment of the lot line between the two parcels to add an additional 4,800 SF to 
TP 24-433-007-0000. No new lots are being created with this submission.  
 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

4



Ferguson Township Planning Commission 
Monday, September 26, 2022 
Page 2 

Since this is a minor subdivision plan, it will proceed as a Preliminary/Final 
submission that will be reviewed once by the Planning Commission and the Board 
of Supervisors for approval. 
 
Mr. Keough asked which line was being moved.  Ms. Bassett and Mr. Ressler 
reviewed the map that was included in the agenda packet  
 
Mr. Wheland moved that the Planning Commission recommend approval to the 
Board of Supervisors of the Subdivision/Replot of TP 24-433-007-0000 and 24-
433-008-0000 at 2151 and 2161 Sandy Drive.  Mr. Crassweller seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed unanimously.    
 
Mr. Keough suggested using laser lights to indicate a location on a map.  Ms. 
Bassett will ensure they will be available in the future.   

    
V. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COMMISSION 

 
Please let Ms. Bassett or Ms. Wargo know if you will be attending the October 11th 
Terraced Streetscape Zoning District Design Charrette session for the Terrace 
Streetscape District.   
 

VI. OFFICIAL REPORTS AND CORRESONDENCES 
 

A. Board of Supervisors 
 
Ms. Bassett noted that 165 Volos Lane Minor Land Development Plan was approved 
by the Board of Supervisors and ACT 50 was approved for a public hearing.   
 

B. CRPC Meeting 
 
Dr. Taricani reported that they did not meet.    
 

C. Land Development Plans 
 
Ms. Bassett reviewed the following: 
 

a. Farmstead All Washed Up Carwash – First Staff Review  
b. Farmstead View Preliminary Subdivision – Awaiting Response to fifth review  
c.    Peace Center and Cemetery Preliminary Land Development Plan – Second 

Submission under staff review  
d. Fusion Japanese Steakhouse – Awaiting Response to first review  
e. IMBT Preliminary Subdivision Plan– Conditionally approved on September 

6, 2022  
f.   West College Avenue Vertical Mixed-Use Preliminary Land Development 

Plan – Second Submission under staff review  
g. MP Machinery Preliminary Land Development Plan –Second staff review 
h. Minor Subdivision of 2161 and 2151 Sandy Drive – PC review on September 

26, 2022  
i.   Salvation Baptist Church – Second Submission under staff review  
j.  165 Volos Lane (296 W. Pine Grove Road) Minor Land Development Plan– 

Approved by the BOS on September 20, 2022 
 

Mr. Keough expressed concerns with the alley situation on the IMBT 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan.  Ms. Bassett stated that it won’t be addressed 
until the Land Development Plan is submitted. Mr. Keough suggested adding 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

5



Ferguson Township Planning Commission 
Monday, September 26, 2022 
Page 3 

expiration dates to the plans.  Ms. Bassett will start adding the dates to future 
agendas.   

 
D. Staff Updates 

 
Ms. Basset reported that on October 11th from 6:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m. there will be a 
Terraced Streetscape Zoning District Design Charrette session for the Terrace 
Streetscape District.  
 
Ms. Bassett reported that the new Ordinance Enforcement Officer will start on 
October 3rd.    
 
Mr. Binney asked for an update on the Whitehall Road Regional Park.  Mr. Keough 
reported as a member of the Park Authority that it is moving along but with a few 
problems. The problems are related to digging because of rain, permitting issues, 
and big rocks.  Mr. Keough will get an update soon to be shared.     
 

VII. Adjournment  
 
Mr. Crassweller made a motion to adjourn the September 26, 2022, Planning 
Commission meeting at 6:25 p.m.  Mr. Keough seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously.   

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
 
                                                               

Rob Crassweller, Secretary 
For the Planning Commission 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

6



 
 

- A Home Rule Municipality - 

 

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive  •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
Telephone: 814-238-4651  •   Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 

 

 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Kristina Bassett, Community Planner  
 
DATE:  September 22, 2022 
  
SUBJECT: Salvation Baptist Church Preliminary Baptist Church 
 
 

On June 1, 2022, Lichty Engineering submitted, a Preliminary Land Development Plan on 
behalf of their client, The Salvation Baptist Church.  Salvation Baptist Church, formerly known 
as The Russian Church of Christ, is located at 3645 West College Avenue (TP: 24-004-,078-
,0000-). This parcel is approximately 60.61 acres and is zoned Rural Agricultural (RA) and 
Corridor Overlay (COD). 
 
This land development plan proposes a fellowship hall and garage, totaling 13,626 SF. At the 
time of the original land development plan, a fellowship hall and garage was proposed 
adjacent to the church and was never constructed. Since it has been more than five (5) years 
since the last approved land development plan, a new plan is required. 
 
Staff has reviewed the 4th resubmission of the preliminary land development plan and is 
recommending conditional approval subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A study should be completed to determine the actual floodplain limits. 
2. Riparian Buffer needs to be shown on the plan. 
3. A notarized statement by the owner certifying ownership of the property must be included 

on the plan. 
4. Add the drainage easement designation to the Riparian Overlay Zoning District label on 

the Stormwater Plan. (Same as LDP).  
 
 
Recommended Motion: Move that the Planning Commission recommend conditional 
approval of the Salvation Baptist Preliminary Land Development Plan to the Board of 
Supervisors subject to the conditions described above. 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

7



 
 

Page 1 of 1 

- A Home Rule Municipality - 

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive  •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
Telephone: 814-238-4651  •   Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 
 

 
October 19, 2022
 
 
Joseph E. Lichty, P.E. 
687 Berkshire Drive 
State College, PA 16803 
 
RE: Salvation Baptist Church Preliminary Land Development Plan—4th Review 
 
Dear Mr. Lichty, 
 
Thank you for resubmitting the Salvation Baptist Church Preliminary Land Development Plan, dated, February 9, 
2022, last revised October 13, 2022, for our review. The submission has been reviewed by staff and agencies as 
required by the Township’s Code of Ordinances. 
 
Please review and respond to the following comments and resubmit at your earliest convenience. Feel free to 
contact staff with any questions. 
 
Should you have any additional questions, please contact me at jwargo@twp.ferguson.pa.us or 570-452-5102. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Jenna Wargo, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc:  Kristina Bassett, Community Planner 
LF:   1978-3-2B 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

8

mailto:jwargo@twp.ferguson.pa.us


   

TO: Kristina Bassett, Community Planner   

FROM: Jeffrey Ressler, Zoning Administrator   

DATE: October 18, 2022   

SUBJECT: Salvation Baptist Church Preliminary Plan 4th Review   

   

2. Reference to and the conditions of the Variance granted June 28, 2017 need to be listed 
on the plan. Conditions include a waterways encroachment permit.  Comment addressed.   

3. Floodplains, as defined by the Township Zoning Ordinance [Chapter 271 must be included 
on the plan. (Chapter 22, Section 401.1.A.2.c.ii) Floodplain is Zone A. A study should be 
completed to determine the actual floodplain limits.  Comment not addressed.  Riparian 
Buffer also needs to be shown on the plan.  

16. A signed notarized statement by the owner certifying ownership of the property must be 
included on the plan. (Chapter 22, Section 401 C.I .1)   Comment Remains.   

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

9



 

 

  

NTM Engineering, Inc. 

341 Science Park Road, Suite 203 

State College, PA 16803 

814-862-9191 

Dillsburg    State College    Philadelphia www.ntmeng.com 

 
October 18, 2022 
 
Via Email 
 
 
Township of Ferguson 
3147 Research Drive 
State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
 
Attn:   Mr. Ronald Seybert, Township Engineer 
  
RE:  Salvation Baptist Church Plan 

Stormwater Management Site Plan Review 
 
Dear Ron, 

We have completed our initial stormwater management review for the Salvation Russian 

Baptist Church Plan. The applicant’s Design Professional, Lichty Engineering, submitted the 
following information that serves as the basis of our review: 

1. Salvation Baptist Church Stormwater Management Plan Update with revisions through 

October 13, 2022. (5 sheets) 

2. Salvation Baptist Church 2022 Land Development Plan Update Stormwater Management 

Report Dated August 2022 with revisions through October 14, 2022.. 

3. Salvation Baptist Church Land Development Plan Sheets LD-1 and LD-2 last revised 

October 13, 2022. 

4. Comment response letter dated October 14, 2022. 

NTM has reviewed these documents for compliance with the Township stormwater 
management ordinance (Chapter 26 of the Township Code. Our continuing comments are 
provided in bold text below.  
  
4. 26-308.1.A. Provide a drainage easement for the drainageway traversing the property.  

September 19, 2022:  Comment not addressed.  Easement not clearly identified on 
Stormwater Management Plan.  

October 18, 2022:  Comment partially addressed.  Add the drainage easement 
designation to the Riparian Overlay Zoning District label on the Stormwater plan. 
This same revision should be made on the Land Development Plan.  

7. 26-402.  Provide a complete and separate Stormwater Management Site Plan Report and 
Stormwater Management Site Plan Drawings meeting the requirements of Section 26-402 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

10



Mr. Ronald Seybert Page 2 October 18, 2022 
 

 

 

documenting the site stormwater management design.  Provide analysis based on 
Township Standards outlined in Chapter 26 of the Township Code.   

September 19, 2022:  Comment partially addressed. E&S Plans and details are to be part 
of the Land Development Plan and not part of the Stormwater Management Site Plan.  
The PCSM Plans include a significant amount of duplicate information already on the 
Stormwater Plans.  All proposed stormwater management elements required by 
Township Ordinance should be clearly shown and detailed on the stormwater 
management site plan.  Add a complete Operation and Maintenance matrix to the 
Stormwater Management Site Plan.   

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

8. 26-402.  Plans and details for all existing stormwater management facilities must be 
included on the plan based on as-built information.   

September 19, 2022:  Clearly identify all as-built information on the plan and include as-
built details for Basin 1.   

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

10. 26-402. Provide detail of the inlet filter on the plans.  The inlet filter must filter oil and 
petroleum as well as sediment since the site is in  a well head protection area.     

September 19, 2022:  The permanent inlet detail is currently included on the E&S and 
PCSM plans.  When consolidating information ensure that the detail is included as part of 
the complete Stormwater Management Site Plan. 

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

11. 26-402.  Provide details of the restoration process (including how any compacted soils 
are to be restored), and final planting materials and details proposed for the restoration 
area,.  Restoration methods consistent with PADEP BMP 6.7.2, Landscape Restoration, 
and BMP 6.7.3, Soil Amendment and Restoration should be applied to be consistent with 
the runoff curve number used for this area in the post development analysis.  

September 19, 2022:  Comment partially addressed. Revise Note 10 on Sheet 3 to indicate 
that all areas of soil compaction to be renovated to a depth of 6 inches or to the depth of 
compaction whichever is greater.  

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

11



Mr. Ronald Seybert Page 3 October 18, 2022 
 

 

 

12. 26-402.   Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan to reference the Stormwater 
Management Site Plan Drawings and Report. 

September 19, 2022:  Comment partially addressed.  The E&S plans are to be included 
with the site plan.  Update the reference to indicate same. Also include the latest revisions 
date in the reference.  

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

13. 26-402.   Reference to the Stormwater Management Site Plan Report and E&S Plans to be 
included on Stormwater Management Site Plan Drawings. 

September 19, 2022:  Comment partially addressed. Include most recent revision date in 
the reference.  

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

14. 26-402.  Reference to the Stormwater Management Site Plan Drawings and E&S Plan to 
be included in the Stormwater Management Site Plan Report.    

September 19, 2022:  Comment not addressed.  Also, include reference to the appropriate 
drawing set when referencing individual drawings in the narrative.  

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

15. 26-702 Declaration of Stormwater and Access Maintenance Easement for Privately 
Owned Stormwater Facilities to be executed and recorded by the Owner prior to final 
approval of the Stormwater Management Site Plan.  

September 19, 2022:  Applicants response acknowledged.  No further response 
required. 

Additional Comments at September 19, 2022: 

16. Include documentation identifying the capture volume, recharge volume, and water 
quality volume per the Township Ordinance.  Include demonstration that these values 
are being met.   

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

17. Stormwater Management Plan Sheet SW-1.   Update the Stormwater Management Plan 
Set List of Plan Sheet:  Delete the Land Development List of Drawings from this sheet. 
Delete the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors signature block. 

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

12



Mr. Ronald Seybert Page 4 October 18, 2022 
 

 

 

18. Delete the Township Reviewer and Design Engineer Certification blocks from Sheet 
SW-2. 

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

19. Include the BMP Operation and Maintenance matrix on the Stormwater Management 
Site Plan.  The matrix should match the information in the Stormwater Report.  

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

20. On Sheet SW-23 identify the capture depth below the first orifice.  

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

21. Identify Critical Stages of Construction on the Stormwater Management Plans. 

October 18, 2022:  Comment addressed. 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please feel free to contact me 
at 814-862-9191.   
 
Sincerely, 
NTM Engineering, Inc. 

 
Scott A. Brown, PE, D.WRE 
Senior Project Manager 

ec:   Ms. Jenna Wargo, AICP, Director of Planning and Zoning, Ferguson Township 
 Mr. James Coslo, Centre County Conservation District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2022 10 18 Salvation Baptist Church r3 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

13



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

14

Joe
Draft

Joe
Typewritten text
10/19/2022

Joe
Typewritten text
10/19/2022



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

15

Joe
Draft



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

16

Joe
Draft



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

17

Joe
Draft



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

18

Joe
Draft



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

19

Joe
Draft



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

20

Joe
Draft



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

21



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

22



Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

23



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Municipalities Contiguous to College Township, including:  
Township of Patton, Attention: Doug Erickson | Township of Ferguson, Attention: Jenna Wargo, AICP  
Township of Halfmoon, Attention: Planning & Zoning | Township of Harris, Attention: Amy Farkas 
Township of Benner, Attention: Sharon Royer | Borough of State College, Attention: Ed LeClear, AICP  
Centre County Planning & Community Development Office, Attention: Ray Stolinas, AICP | Mr. Jim 
May, Centre Regional Planning Agency/Centre Regional Planning Commission  
Via Email  

From: Lindsay K. Schoch, AICP | Principal Planner  
 

Re: Request for Review. Walkable College Township, a Pedestrian Facilities Master Plan 

 Date: September 19, 2022 
                

College Township, over the past few years has been working to prepare a Pedestrian Facilities Master Plan. We 
are happy to report we are at the stage in the process when you, as a contagious municipality has the 
opportunity to review and comment upon the work completed.  

In an effort to be mindful of the environment, allow us to offer you this link to the Plan. This link will take you 
to the electronic version of Walkable College Township, A Pedestrian Facilities Master Plan. Kindly review the 
contents within and provide comment to College Township by November 3, 2022 for consideration at the 
November 17, 2022 Public Hearing. Also, feel free to take the survey found within the link!  

In addition to the Pedestrian Plan, we also provide proposed amendments to our subdivision and land 
development ordinance impacted by the updated Ped Plan. It is our intent to adopt the Plan and enact the 
ordinance changes at the same Public Hearing to ensure the prompt implementation of the Pedestrian Facility 
Master Plan. Below, please find the proposed ordinance changes. Pursuant to Section 505 of the PA MPC, we 
offer these proposed changes for your review.  

We want to take this opportunity to thank you for your time and attention to this Plan review. Pedestrian 
Facilities are not a single-municipality issue, as they are regional and countywide assets. Your input is valuable.   

If you have any questions during your review, I welcome you to reach out to me for further discussion and 
clarification.  

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

24

https://pedestrian-facilities-master-plan-college-township.hub.arcgis.com/


 

 

COLLEGE TOWNSHIP 

CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 

ORDINANCE NO. O-22-04 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE TO IMPLEMENT THE RECOMMENDATIONS SET FORTH IN THE 
PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES MASTER PLAN BY AMENDING CHAPTER 180 – SUBDIVISION AND 
LAND DEVELOPMENT TO UPDATE SIDEWALK REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO WAIVERS, 

DEFERRALS, AND FEE-IN-LIEU OF PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES; REQUIRE CUL-DE-SAC 
CONNECTIONS; AND TO UPDATE CHAPTER A-203 SCHEDULE OF FEES TO ESTABLISH 

APPROPRIATE FEES AS A PAYMENT IN LIEU OF PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES. 

Strikethrough = deletion  
Bold Italics = addition  

BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED, by the College Township Council, Centre County, Pennsylvania and 
the authority of the same, does hereby adopt, made this _____ day of _________ 2022, by amending the Code 
of the Township of College, Pennsylvania with the amendment of Chapter 180 as follows:  

SECTION 1 – CHAPTER 180 SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT  

180-16.F.(2) 

(f) Cul-de-sac connections that link to a park, school, adjacent neighborhood, pedestrian or  
 bicycle facility, shall be a priority for future connection in the Township, therefore, when a  
 cul-de-sac is proposed as part of a subdivision of land development plan, said cul-de-sac shall  
 have a right-of-way, linkage, and/or cut-through easement at the terminus of the cul-de-sac. 

180.16.1 Sidewalks:  

It is the intent of College Township to provide for a safe and convenient sidewalk system in appropriate areas of 
College Township to create a pedestrian friendly environment. The following regulations are intended to do just 
that: 

A.  General. Sidewalks shall be required to be included in a subdivision or land development plan as 
follows: 

(1) All new streets proposed in a land development or subdivision plan shall include sidewalks along both 
sides of the streets.  

(2) All new subdivisions or land developments located adjacent to an existing street(s). A sidewalk shall be 
required along the side(s) of the street(s) which the proposed subdivision or land development abuts where there 
currently is no sidewalk(s).  

(3)  All nonresidential, townhome and multifamily residential uses shall provide a separate system of 
sidewalks connecting the primary building entrance(s) to other primary buildings' entrance(s) and to the nearest 
public sidewalk abutting the development.  

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

25



 

 

B. Exemptions. The following shall be exempt from the provisions of § 180-16.1A: 

(1) Development reviewed pursuant to § 200-50, Residential site plan review, shall be exempt from the 
requirements contained herein unless required as part of a subdivision or land development approved pursuant 
to Chapter 180, Subdivision of Land, prior to the adoption of this section.  

(2) Development within the Village Center District shall provide sidewalks pursuant to § 200-40E, 
Sidewalks and parking lot requirements for Village Center District.  

(3)  Development reviewed pursuant to § 200-28.4.B.f is eligible for a reduction of sidewalks as an incentive 
for development of workforce housing.  

C. Waivers. The Council may waive the requirements for sidewalks contained above if it determines in the 
following circumstances that the amount of pedestrian traffic will be minimal, the provisions of sidewalks will 
create an undue hardship and/or the provisions of sidewalks will change the rural character of the area proposed 
for development: 

(1) A subdivision or land development is outside of the Regional Growth Boundary as shown in the 2000 
Centre Region Comprehensive Plan as subsequently amended.  

(2) The subdivision or land development is within a single-family residential neighborhood where no other 
sidewalks exist.  

(3) The subdivision or land development has topographic, environmentally sensitive features, such as 
existing vegetation, wetlands, or floodplains and/or man-made limitations.  

D.  Alternatives. Where a land development or subdivision plan is requesting a waiver from the 
requirements contained within this section, alternatives shall be considered, such as alternate pedestrian routes, 
different widths or building material before Council can grant a waiver pursuant to above.  

180.16.1 Sidewalks:  

It is the intent of College Township to provide an interconnected, continuous, and well-maintained network 
of sidewalks, shared-use paths, and other related facilities that provide all users, regardless of age and 
ability, with safe and efficient access to numerous key destinations throughout College Township and the 
Centre Region.  

A.  General. Sidewalks shall be required to be included in a subdivision or land development plan as 
follows: 

 (1) All new streets proposed in a land development or subdivision plan shall include sidewalks  
  along both sides of the streets.  

 (2) All new subdivisions or land developments located adjacent to an existing street(s). A sidewalk  
  shall be required along the side(s) of the street(s) which the proposed subdivision or land  
  development abuts where there currently is no sidewalk(s).  

 (3) All nonresidential, townhome and multifamily residential uses shall provide a separate system  
  of sidewalks connecting the primary building entrance(s) to other primary buildings'   
  entrance(s) and to the nearest public sidewalk abutting the development.  

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

26



 

 

B. Exemptions. The following shall be exempt from the provisions of § 180-16.1A: 

(1) Development reviewed pursuant to § 200-50, Residential site plan review, shall be exempt from 
 the requirements contained herein unless required as part of a subdivision or land development 
 approved pursuant to Chapter 180, Subdivision of Land, prior to the adoption of this section.  

 (2) Development within the Village Center District shall provide sidewalks pursuant to § 200-40E, 
  Sidewalks and parking lot requirements for Village Center District.  

 (3)  Development reviewed pursuant to § 200-28.4.B.f is eligible for a reduction of sidewalks as an  
  incentive for development of workforce housing.  

C.  Alternatives. Where a land development or subdivision plan is requesting a waiver from the 
requirements contained within this section, alternatives shall be considered, such as alternate pedestrian 
routes, different widths or building material before Council can grant a waiver pursuant to above.  

D. Fee-in-lieu of Pedestrian Facilities. In instances where pedestrian facilities are not proposed, but are 
required by the Ordinance, a pedestrian facility fee-in-lieu is an option if a facility meets the following 
criteria:  

  (1) The construction of pedestrian facilities is proven to be a hardship on the developer,  
   and; 

  (2) All reasonable alternatives for inclusion of the required pedestrian facilities are  
   exhausted, and;  

  (3) The Township Engineer has determined that the project is cost prohibitive.  

(4) The following criteria shall be submitted for review:  

(a) Engineered drawing(s);  

(b) Estimated pedestrian facility construction costs and;  

(c) A map indicating the distance to nearest existing/planned facility.  

E.  Deferral: A deferral offers an option to delay construction of a required pedestrian facility for a set 
 amount of time, or until some other factor triggers the need for construction. In order to request a 
 deferral of a pedestrian facility, the following four (4) shall apply:  

(1)  Sidewalks are required under the SALDO;  

(2)  Justification is provided as to why the installation of pedestrian facilities may be a hardship; 

(3) No alternatives are acceptable;  

(4)  Cost prohibitive formula is applied, but the project is deemed not cost prohibitive;  

In the case a deferral is warranted, recommended by the Planning Commission and approved by Council, the 
following three (3) shall apply:  

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

27



 

 

(5)  Unless otherwise recommended, a deferral shall not be more than two (2) years;  

(6)  Final conditions of deferral are determined by staff, recommended by the Planning a 
 Commission and approved by Council;  

(7)  Notes outlining the final deferral conditions are added to the proposed land 
 development/subdivision plan and recorded upon approval.  

F. Waiver: Council may waive the requirements for sidewalks contained above if it determines in the 
 following circumstances that the amount of pedestrian traffic will be minimal, the provisions of 
 sidewalks will create an undue hardship and/or the provisions of sidewalks will change the rural 
 character of the area proposed for development:  

  (1) A subdivision or land development is outside of the Regional Growth Boundary as shown in  
  the 2000 Centre Region Comprehensive Plan as subsequently amended.  

 (2) The subdivision or land development is within a single-family residential neighborhood where  
  no other sidewalks exist.  

 (3) The subdivision or land development has topographic, environmentally sensitive features,  
  such as existing vegetation, wetlands, or floodplains and/or man-made limitations.  

(4) Waivers shall only be considered if fee-in-lieu and  deferral options exhausted. At least one of   
 the following factors shall apply: 

 (a) The College Township Engineer concurs that the construction of the proposed facility is  
  technically infeasible and all alternate alignment options have been exhausted. Submit a  
  Technically Infeasible Waiver Request to the Township for consideration; conditions   
  considered include adverse topology, overhead utilities, street lighting, traffic signal poles,  
  underground utilities, conflicting structures, bodies of water and storm water facilities.   
  Requirements of the Technically Infeasible Waiver Request (TIWR) shall include:  

i. Cover letter addressed to Township Council;  

ii. Waiver request justification report signed and sealed by a Professional 
Engineer or Architect;  

iii. Cost estimate of modifications required to construct the facility per ordinance 
requirements;  

iv. Hardship justification pursuant to Section 180-15. 

 (b)  The proposed facility scores seven (7) or less on the Project Prioritization Matrix.  

 (c) The proposed facility is on a parcel located outside of the Regional Growth Boundary/Sewer   
 Service Area (RGB/SSA) and provides no or redundant connectivity to the existing or    
 proposed network within the  RGB/SSA.  

SECTION 2 – CHAPTER A-203 FEES AND PENALTIES  

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

28



 

 

A203-26: Pursuant to §180.16.1.A the consideration of a fee-in-lieu of pedestrian facilities must represent a 
reasonable return that would cover the true costs for the Township to develop a comparable facility. The fee 
schedule, set forth by resolution may be reviewed and revised periodically. The following fees shall be applied 
when calculating costs: 

A. $80 per square yard – facility construction 

B. $10 per square yard – incidentals (drainage, tree root guards) 

C. $1,000 per ADA ramp, in addition to the square yard cost 

SECTION 3 – REFERENCES 

Add the following references to Chapter 200 Zoning and 200–38.4.B.f. Workforce Housing  
 Chapter 180 – Subdivision and Land Development (Reference to 180-16.F.(2), 180.16, 180.16.1) 
 

SECTION 4 – SEVERABILITY 

If any sentence or clause, section, or part of this ordinance is found to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, 
such findings shall not affect or impair any of the remaining parts of this ordinance. It is hereby declared to be 
the intent that this ordinance would have been adopted had such part not been included.  

 

SECTION 5 – EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after enactment.  

 

ENACTED AND ORDAINED, this ______ day of ________ 2022, by the College Township Council, Centre 
County, Pennsylvania.  

 

ATTEST:        COLLEGE TOWNSHIP COUNCIL:   

         

        D. Richard Franke, Council Chair 

Adam T. Brumbaugh, Manager/Secretary  

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 24, 2022 

29


	1- 2022_10_24_PC_HybridAgenda_JLW
	2-DRAFT - Ferguson Township Planning Commission Minutes September 26, 2022
	3-Memo Salvation Church
	4-2022_10_19_SalvationBaptist4thReview_Combined
	1-2022_10_18_SalvationCvrLtr_JLW.pdf
	2-10-18-22 Salvation Baptist LDP 4th Reveiw JR.pdf
	3-2022 10 18 Salvation Russian Baptist Church r3.pdf

	5-2022_10_19_Salvation_LDPPlanSet
	02 LD-2.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	01 LD-1.pdf
	05 LT-1.pdf
	10 AR-3.pdf
	09 AR-2.pdf
	08 AR-1.pdf
	06 ES-1.pdf
	07 ES-2.pdf
	03 TP-1.pdf
	04 LS-1.pdf


	6-2022_09-19 Memo to Contig Munis



